












































































































































MALABAR TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
AUGUST 20, 2007             7:30 PM 

 
 This meeting of the Malabar Town Council was held at Town Hall at 2725 Malabar Road.   
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 The meeting was called to order at 7:35 pm by Mayor Eschenberg.  The prayer and pledge 

were led by Council Member Nancy Borton. 
B. ROLL CALL:  

  MAYOR/CHAIR TOM ESCHENBERG 
  VICE-CHAIR: CHUCK McCLELLAND   
  COUNCIL MEMBERS: NANCY BORTON 
   BRIAN VAIL  
   BOBBI MOCCIA  
   PAT DEZMAN coming from Orlando 
  TOWN ADMINISTRATOR: BONILYN WILBANKS-FREE 
  ATTORNEY: KARL BOHNE 
  DEPUTY TOWN CLERK: CINDI KELLEY 
 
C. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/CHANGES:  Mrs. Moccia asked that Council approve hearing from 

Helen Volz, Steve Burowsky and Morris Richardson regarding the Valkaria Airport master plan.  
It is the general consensus of Council to hear this information.  This is to be heard as a 
presentation. 

 
D. PRESENTATIONS  
 Helen Volz, Steve Burowsky and Morris Richardson came forward and provided information 

regarding the Valkaria Airport master plan.  This information was provided in answer to a letter 
received from the Town speaking against the master plan.  Each concern raised in the letter 
was addressed and spoken to. 

  
E CONSENT AGENDA  
 1. Approval of Minutes  RTCM 8/6/07 

Exhibit:  Agenda Report No. 1 
Recommendation: Motion to approve  
MOTION:  Moccia/Borton to approve consent agenda.  VOTE:  All Ayes.

 
F. STAFF REPORTS: 
  ATTORNEY 

•    Concrete Issue at Fire Department 
A letter was sent to Southeast Masonry on July 11, 2007 regarding the work completed at 
the fire department.  Each issue brought forth had an answer and this information provided 
stated that both Chief Gianantonio and Mr. Vail authorized the work to be done.  Mr. Bohne 
advised that under current case law, there is no signed contract and the Town is not 
obligated to pay for this work.  A threat to place liens against the property has been made; 
you can not put liens against municipal property, it could be fraudulent.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free 
stated that there is a discrepancy as to when the concrete was poured.  Mayor Eschenberg 
asked that comments be copied to Council and that this appear as a discussion item at the 
next meeting.   

 ADMINISTRATOR 
 The Town Administrator introduced the new Building Official, Roger Cloutier to Council.  He 
 gave a brief history of his background. 

• Update on Planning Services Contractor 
The contract has been prepared and sent to the planner for their completion.  It could not be 
completed for this evening but it should be for the RTCM on September 5, 2007. 



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 8/20/07 PAGE 2 
 
Mrs. Dezman arrived at 8:15 pm. 
 
• Update on Town Hall A/C unit 
A set of materials was provided to you and we have the Bob Cannon from R. D. Cannon 
A/C here to explain what is needed.  Mr. Cannon gave an overview of what he feels is 
needed to make this problem go away.  Mr. McClelland asked about the electrical.  This was 
not included in the proposal for the a/c; Council wanted to go out for an RFP.  Mr. Vail stated 
it is worth bringing the unit up to standards.  It was requested that this be spoken on later in 
the meeting.  Mrs. Dezman is in agreement.   
 
• Town Hall Site Offers – direction on how to handle 
Mrs. Wilbanks-Free asked Council for guidance with regards to the individuals who have 
made an offer to sell property to the Town for the new town hall.  There are no procedures in 
place for her to know how to handle this.  Mayor Eschenberg stated that Site Committee 
needs to have a meeting and get a full update on what has been happening.  It was asked 
that Mrs. Wilbanks-Free sit on this committee as the previous Town Administrator was on 
the committee.   
There was a meeting with Mitch Needleman regarding the land we have been looking into.  
The EELs Program seems to be the road block in this.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free has spoken to 
Debby regarding the property that Mrs. Hirsch owns with regards to getting a price.  The 
resident lives to the rear of the property; with legal assistance, we could have a life estate on 
the property and have it revert back to the Town for our use when the resident is no longer 
occupying it.  Mrs. Moccia stated we are running out of property large enough for the new 
Town Hall.  The EELs are holding this project up.  Mrs. Borton would like to follow-up with 
this.  The central location is ideal.  Mrs. Borton doesn’t feel the Town can afford to purchase 
both the building and the land.  When leaving the meeting with the EELs, both she and Mrs. 
Wilbanks-Free thought we were on our way with the feeling that something had been 
accomplished.   
 
Mrs. Vickie Thomas came forward to address Council.  This committee was put together as 
an AHOC committee.  She had tried to contact make contact with the committee and was 
told that this committee had completed their task.  Staff will set up a meeting with this 
committee. 
 

 CLERK  
• Election Packets ready for pickup 
Ms. Kelley reported that the packets for Candidate Qualifying have been put together.  A 
packet was delivered to Mrs. Dezman on Friday.  Mrs. Moccia asked if the dates had been 
extended.  Ms. Kelley stated that the legal ad had been placed and the dates should be fine.  
Mrs. Wilbanks-Free advised Council that the ad was placed, but not prior to the dates of 
qualifying.  The Supervisor of Elections stated they would extend if there is any complaint.   
 
Deputy Drinkwater was in the audience and was introduced.  He came forward and 
addressed Council.  The lines of communications have been opened.  He reported that with 
the last e-mail he received, all positions have been approved for four deputies in the south 
precinct.  There are no real issues within the Town.  Mrs. Moccia states it’s good to see him 
at the meeting. 
 
At this time, Mayor Eschenberg asked Hans Kemmler to come forward.  Mr. Kemmler is the 
Chair of the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board.  He stated the board is going back and 
forth with the existence of the Trails & Greenways Committee.  The board has done 
everything they can to get a restroom at the Trailhead; the grant funds were not received.  
The board is talking about taking the existing funds that have been received from the 
developers and report to Council within the next month what is needed.  The board will try to  



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 8/20/07 PAGE 3 
 
apply for another grant; they will need assistance with writing this grant.  He asked if the 
Town will be having a committee for the trails and greenways.  It has been noticed that the 
web site does not have the current minutes for this board; are we working on getting the 
information on the web site sooner?   
 
Mayor Eschenberg stated that speaker cards have been received.  We will hear issues on 
the airport issues only. 
 
Bernadette Knudeson, a resident of Malabar, came forward and addressed Council.  She 
spoke against the airport’s master plan.  She has had property damage with the helicopters 
flying over her home.  Malabar is a community designed and built around being agricultural 
and rural.  General and hurricane maintenance at the airport is fine.     
 
Janice Walters, a resident of Grant-Valkaria, came forward and addressed Council.  She 
has heard enough that she has specific comments.  She spoke against the airport’s master 
plan; it promotes for student training and more traffic in general.  When putting this plan 
together, the Airport had no input from the two surrounding towns. 
 
Curt Lorenc, a resident of Grant-Valkaria, came forward and addressed Council.  He spoke 
against the airport’s master plan.  The way that this was done, very few of Malabar’s 
residents knew about it.  This is a giant planning process; there were no real public notices.  
The master plan is needed to apply for FAA funding.  When Mrs. Volz was addressing 
Council a short time ago, Grant-Valkaria advised her that the date of August 29th for a 
meeting to get this approved was not good for them.  This is the date that was chosen for 
this meeting  He is asking for support for the people and that Malabar come out against the 
master plan. 
 
Bob Rowan, 2565 Corey Road, came forward and addressed Council.  He is not for or 
against the master plan.  He did do quite a bit of flying while in New York.  The focus seems 
to be a little different; no fees or low fees for touch and go’s, the planes are going to come.  
He is in agreement with the safety issues as an ex-pilot and a resident with flights over his 
home.  Establishing a high enough touch and go landing fee could be the only way to control 
the air traffic. 
 
Vickie Thomas. 1605 Country Cove Circle, came forward and addressed Council.  She is 
concerned about the safety cautions not being observed.  The helicopters are not supposed 
to fly lower than 500 feet.  She feels this needs to be reviewed more; don’t sell out for 
Federal dollars. 
 
Mayor Eschenberg stated since Mrs. Dezman is now present, the action items will now be 
moved back to the original order. 

      
G. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

  
 ORDINANCES – None 
 
H. ACTION ITEMS 
 
 ORDINANCES – First Reading – None 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 8/20/07 PAGE 4 
  
 RESOLUTIONS – None 
 2. Approval to Remove the Employee Flow Chart from the Employee Manual 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MALABAR, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA; 

AMENDING RESOLUTION 12-2005; PROVIDING FOR THE REMOVAL OF THE 
TOWN’S EMPLOYEE FLOW CHART FROM THE PERSONNEL MANUAL; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICT AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  Exhibit:  Agenda Report No. 2 
  Recommendation: Approval of Resolution No. 16-2007 
  Without objection, Mayor Eschenberg read Resolution 16-2007 by title only. 
  MOTION:  Moccia/McClelland to approve Resolution 16-2007 as presented. 
  The roll was called:  Borton, Vail, McClelland, Moccia and Dezman – All Ayes. 
 
 MISCELLANEOUS 

 
3. Council comments on the proposed EEL’s land Acquisition of the Hirsch/Kain 

Property Located at: 29-37-02-00-254 (approximately 10 +/- acres)  
 Exhibit:  Agenda Report No. 3 
 Recommendation: Council action 
 Mr. Vail stated the land by the fire department is ideal.  We need to keep looking and 

have the committee meet and coordinate with the Town Administrator.  Mayor 
Eschenberg stated that the County Commission is looking for input on this purchase.  
Mrs. Dezman stated Council cannot stop someone from selling their property, we can 
only voice our opinion.  Mrs. Borton stated this is more land off the tax rolls.  Mrs. 
Dezman stated they are not asking for our permission, they have brought it to our 
attention.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free stated a letter will be put together with input from Council.  
Mr. Vail stated that the EELs property asked for approval to purchase three pieces of 
property to round out what they already own.  One reason to be stated is the letter is that 
this is some of our prime real estate north of Duncil Lane; it would be $300 in ad valorem 
taxes and $200 in the MSTU.  Mr. Vail and Mrs. Dezman are against this sale.  Mrs. 
Borton asked if the Town could afford to purchase this land; the EELs keep taking with 
no giving.  Mrs. Moccia stated with Council’s approval, Mrs. Wilbanks-Free should be on 
the committee in Mr. Booth’s place. 
 
Juliana Hirsch, a resident of Malabar, owns this property.  She has held off on this and 
she did not contact the EELs; she contacted FDOT.  Before selling the property, we 
need to know what is happening with the zoning; originally, this was commercial.  The 
Town may only need five acres.  Mrs. Hirsch stated the Town should think before trying 
to stop the purchase; there’s no legal standing.  Mr. Bohne stated the only way is to 
challenge the science; you have to hire experts and the cost would be great to the Town. 
MOTION:  Vail/Dezman to send letter to the EELs regarding the purchase of said 
property. 
Mrs. Moccia stated the EELs are still going out and actively seeking land.  They have 
changed their plan right on Malabar Road; they have money to spend.  A letter needs to 
come from the Town Administrator.  Mrs. Dezman stated she has learned from the 
MSTU that communication is key with each other.  The Commissioners need to know 
how we feel about this; communicate our plan, don’t change it.  We need to render an 
opinion simply stating the facts.  There will be a decrease in our tax rolls; the property is 
RR65 now; trying to get 600 foot frontage off Malabar Road.   
MOTION:  Vail/Dezman write letter to EELs and County Commissioners regarding 
the purchase of this property.  VOTE:  All ayes. 

 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 8/20/07 PAGE 5 
 
4. Approval of Architectural Firm for New Town Hall Project 

Exhibit:  Agenda Report No. 4 
Recommendation: Council action  
Mrs. Moccia stated she called the Better Business Bureau looking for information on the 
applicants; with the exception of Rood/Zwick, she didn’t know where to look for this 
company.  Mr. Bohne suggested that Council bring back all three firms; following the 
State statutes.  It was a close vote between the Nadgrodsky and Rood/Zwick; the 
meeting was 4 ½ hours long; the committee did a thorough job.  The main positive of 
Rood/Zwick was their presentation.  Mr. Vail stated Council should keep in mind the 
qualifications of the committee members; he is putting his faith into them.   
MOTION:  Dezman/Borton to bring in all three firms for presentations. 
Mrs. Wilbanks-Free stated this needs to be a special meeting not a workshop.   
VOTE:  All Ayes. 
Mrs. Dezman asked that this meeting not be a Monday.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free asked 
about September 6th.  Mr. Bohne stated any third Wednesday he is available.  The 
budget hearing is set for Wednesday, September 5th.  It was stated that the grant is 
based on the architect; there is no deadline on spending the funds.  A special Council 
meeting as been set for Thursday, August 30th to begin at 7:00 pm.  Each presentation 
will be 15 minutes and Council will have 10 minutes for questions. 
 

5. Appointment of Bud Ryan as Regular Member of Planning and Zoning Board 
Exhibit:  Agenda Report No. 5 
Recommendation: Council action  
MOTION:  Borton/Moccia to approve as presented.  Vote:  All ayes. 

 
6. Accounting Services until Year End 
 Exhibit:  Agenda Report No. 6 
 Recommendation: Council action 
 Mrs. Wilbanks-Free stated that at the last budget workshop there was no plan of action 

as of yet for Mrs. Kabana.  We don’t know where we are at.  One reason the amount for 
the auditors was so high is due to the chart of accounts.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free has 
spoken to an accountant she has worked with in the past and has passed information to 
him to show what needs to be done.  Mr. Torres stated that he would charge the Town 
$2,500 per month to close July, August and September; he would also assist with the 
information for the RFP.   

 MOTION:  Dezman/Borton to approve.
 Mrs. Moccia asked how this happened, was something left out.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free 

stated the Stillwater assets were not done; the audit was complete and the numbers had 
to be re-worked.  Mayor Eschenberg asked where the funds would come from to pay 
this.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free stated she could not say at this time.  Mayor Eschenberg 
stated this needs to be done and the funds, if need be, should be taken from reserves.  
Mrs. Dezman stated she does not want the person who presented the audit to be our 
contact person.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free stated that she has had conversation with Mr. 
Whitely at Berman Hopkins and this person will no longer be involved with our account. 

 MOTION:  Dezman/Borton to approve $7,500 of accounting for last quarter.  VOTE:  
All Ayes. 

 
I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  
 7. Use of Town’s “Mailboat” and/or Website by Election Candidates 
  Exhibit:  Agenda Report No. 7 
  Recommendation: Discussion and direction by Town Council 
  MOTION:  Borton to decline involvement 
   



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 8/20/07 PAGE 6 
   
  Mayor Eschenberg stated that before a motion can be made, we have a speaker card on 
  this matter.   

 Bud Ryan, 1923 Howell Lane, came forward and addressed Council.  He is asking that 
space be made available on the town web site and the Mailboat for candidates to get 
their views across.  This will assist the Council in seeing what the people are concerned 
about.  It should be edited for factual correctness and for length of presentation.    

 
 The discussion was brought back to Council.  Mrs. Borton ran unopposed the first time; 

the second time, someone ran against her and she had to pay to advertise.  The 
Mailboat should not be used; it is a way for Council and the Administrator to 
communicate with the residents regarding issues that are happening.  The candidates 
have always run their own campaign.  Mrs. Moccia is in agreement; it’s part of running 
for Town Council.  It’s like a blessing of the candidates and it’s hard work.  .  She doesn’t 
mind the web site being used.  Mr. Vail doesn’t want the Mailboat used as a place to 
voice opinions.  It’s not a place for a campaign letter either.  Mrs. Moccia stated that 
Florida Today runs articles on the candidates.  Mayor Eschenberg made suggestion that 
any town publication is totally non-political.  A web site can be purchased for about 
$5.00; any candidate who opens a web site, the town should give them a link.   

 
 Mrs. Dezman hasn’t said anything regarding this as she is up for election.  Anyone has 

the right to open their own web site with a link on the town’s web site.   
 MOTION:  Borton/Dezman to decline any involvement in this at all.   
 Mr. Bohne stated that if someone gets a web site, Council can allow the links to be 

provided.  It can be used as a candidate’s forum; it’s not uncommon.  He placed a call to 
the Supervisor of Elections regarding this.  It is totally up to Council.   

 Mrs. Borton stated there should be no links; this should be done all on their own with no 
official assistance from the Town. 

 Mr. Vail doesn’t like a double action motion; each motion should be broken out.   
 VOTE:  Moccia, Borton, Dezman, Ayes – Vail & McClelland – Nays. 
 Mrs. Dezman advised Council that the School Board, when running, is responsible for 

everything they do. 
 
 8. Consideration of a Doggie Dining Ordinance 
  Exhibit:  Agenda Report No. 8 
  Recommendation: Discussion and direction by Town Council 
  Stuart Borton, 141 Riverview Lane, came forward and addressed Council.  He spoke in 

favor of the ordinance.  The restaurant will have to deal with their own liabilities.  This is 
a conflict of interest for Mrs. Borton.  

 
  Steven Sciontino, 1390 US #1, came forward and addressed Council.  He spoke in favor 

of the ordinance.  He is in agreement with Mr. Borton. 
 
  The discussion came back to Council.  The question of liability issues was brought to 

mind.  Mr. Bohne stated he doesn’t see how the Town can be liable.  We are permitting 
something to occur; he doesn’t see the liability and could not get the issue from the 
Florida Today paper.     

  Mayor Eschenberg advised that this is a 3-year pilot program.  The State Division shall 
provide assistance with enforcement of the ordinance.  There are some requirements 
that the Town would have to do if Council decides to pass this ordinance.  How much is 
the application to issue the permit?  The fee would have to cover all these costs.  Mrs. 
Wilbanks-Free stated a sample ordinance from Orlando was provided for Council to 
review.  Mrs. Borton stated that she has had people inquire when their dogs could come 
to the restaurant.  The ordinance would serve any restaurant within Malabar.  Mr. Vail 
and Mr. McClelland both feel an ordinance should be drafted.  Mrs. Dezman stated great   



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 8/20/07 PAGE 7 
 
  concern for the dogs being out on US #1.  Mrs. Borton stated the dogs would have to be 

leashed.  Mrs. Borton asked how soon this could happen.  Mr. Bohne is to draft an 
ordinance to be brought before Council at the next RTCM.  It would take a minimum of 
three Council meetings. 

 
 9. Consideration of the Proposed Contracts with the MVFD 
  Exhibit:  Agenda Report No. 9 
  Recommendation: Discussion and direction by Town Council 

Mayor Eschenberg stated the contract proposed by the Town was turned down by the 
Corporation; they have presented a contract to the Town for review.     
 
Bob Rowan, 2565 Corey Road, came forward and addressed Council.  He can only 
comment on what he has seen post hurricane.  He does see a need for the corporation 
but they should stand on their own; they need to do fund raising, recruiting and paying 
for the uniforms .  Donations should be spent to benefit the firefighters.  They should not 
be involved in hiring/firing personnel or purchase fire equipment.  Let them exist on their 
own merits.  The Chief, Town Administrator and Council should run the fire department.  
Membership to the corporation should be a choice, not mandatory.  He is asking that 
Council review all documents.   
 
Mayor Eschenberg asked that Chief Gianantonio come to the podium.  He is familiar 
with both contracts.  Mayor asked what he is comfortable with.  Chief Gianantonio stated 
the Corporation should be involved in the recruiting.  It’s been over a year and under 
present management, they have done nothing.  He would be comfortable with the 
Corporation just doing fund raising.   
 
Mr. Bohne stated there are three entities:  the Town, Fire Department and the 
Corporation.  The corporation is not going to be doing the firefighting according to their 
contract.  The members of the corporation, at the expense of the Town, are insuring the 
members of the corporation.  This should be made to say that insurance of firefighters 
only.  Council needs to understand that they are not doing any firefighting.  Mrs. 
Wilbanks-Free stated the information requested from the labor attorney has not been 
obtained regarding paid or stipends; a lot of research is involved in this.  This also may 
be a question that needs answered with regards to insurance if stipends are paid instead 
of salary.  FRS requires that the Town pay the portion for the positions at the fire 
department no matter if it is a stipend or the part-time salary for the Chief and the Fire 
Marshal.  Mr. McClelland stated on August 14, 2004, a final contract was sent back to 
Mr. Booth showing all corrections; the contract was not executed.     
 
It was stated that the language needs to be changed to show firefighters only with 
regards to the VFIS insurance.  VFIS will cover anyone.  If worker’s comp is turned 
down, the VFIS insurance will pick up.  Mr. Bohne stated if the Town is negligent then 
we are responsible.  It was asked that the policy be looked at for the VFIS insurance to 
see what the policy premium is based on.   

 
J. MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
Borton-asked Council for permission to see if her neighbor can come in to see about the a/c in this 
building.   
 
Mrs. Borton attended the FLC conference and stated the speakers were good motivational speakers; 
she picked up a lot of information and has passed it on to Mrs. Wilbanks-Free.   
 
Mrs. Borton asked that the e-mails for the Town Clerk be checked daily.  We don’t want to miss 
anything that may need attention.   



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 8/20/07 PAGE 8 
 
MOTION:  Vail/Moccia to extend the meeting for an additional 10 minutes.  Vote:  All Ayes. 
 
The issues with the Clerk need to be addressed.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free stated Mrs. Kabana would be in 
on Monday to close the month of June and to work with the accountant.  Mrs. Dezman asked if a 
doctor’s note is available at this time.  Mrs. Wilbanks-Free stated she has not received any doctor’s 
notes; a test is being performed tomorrow.   
 
Mrs. Borton advised Council that she has asked Mrs. Wilbanks-Free for attendance records; some of 
the attendance of the staff scares her.   
 
Vail-has no concerns at this time.  He would like to see three estimates for the a/c.   
 
McClelland-has nothing to report at this time. 
 
Moccia-she is meeting with the County Commissioners on Wednesday; asks for Council’s input.  How 
should she go forward with the airport issues?  Safety issues come first; the touch & go landings.  
Mayor would like to know about the safety systems they are looking to put in; will it make it easier for 
landing at night with lights added.  If yes, he’s opposed to it.  We want nothing to encourage night-time 
landings.  Mrs. Dezman stated they are landing and flying at night and day.  The helicopters are below 
500 feet.  It was stated that Mr. Lorenc has video-taped their altitudes; they are so low you can see the 
numbers on the tail of the aircraft.  He has been reporting this activity as recreational use.  If the funds 
are being spent, they are doing it for a reason. 
MOTION:  Dezman/Vail to extend the meeting for an additional 10 minutes.  VOTE:  All Ayes. 
Mrs. Moccia stated that all questions have been answered; she will go to the Commissioners with what 
Council wants.  Mrs. Dezman stated Mrs. Knudeson and Mrs. Thomas said the Advisory Board meeting 
is August 27th.  She has asked that a call be received from Mrs. Wilbanks-Free.  If the meeting is at 
10:00 am, she is available to attend.   
 
Dezman-states we should be consistent with full names on legal documents.     
 
Mrs. Dezman is sharing Mrs. Borton’s concerns.  She raised questions a few meetings ago with how 
we do business.   
 
Mayor Eschenberg-two things about the conference; different cities have different opinions.  The 
Council members should come into a meeting and not socialize.  This would not work for Malabar; we 
are pretty much in line.  Within the vendor area, Calvin Giordano was there; Mayor Eschenberg spoke 
to them about the contract.   
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  GENERAL ITEMS  
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further discussion; MOTION:  Dezman/Borton to adjourn the meeting.  VOTE:  All 
Ayes.  This meeting adjourned at 10:45 pm. 
 
These minutes were approved on 9/5/07. 




